
 

Ffon/Tel: 01656 643643 Facs/Fax:01656 668126  Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk 

Negeseuon SMS/SMS Messaging: 07581 157014 Twitter@bridgendCBC  Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Test relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croseawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod I ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich dewis 
iaith. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 
 Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive’s Directorate 

Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 643147 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       

Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Llun, 7 Ebrill 2025 

 
Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
IS BWYLLGOR HAWLIAU TRAMWY 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Is Bwyllgor Hawliau Tramwy trwy Siambr y Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr 
Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / o bell Trwy Timau Microsoft ar Dydd Gwener, 11 Ebrill 2025 am 
11:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 

1 Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
 

Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 
 

2 Datganiadau o fuddiant 
 

Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 
 

3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion 
3 - 6 

I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 22/08/22 
 

4 Bwriad i Ddargyfeirio Llwybr Troed 17 Porthcawl
7 - 20 

 
5 Materion Brys 

 

  

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


To consider any other item(s) of business in respect of which notice has been given in 
accordance with Rule 4 of the Council Procedure Rules and which the person presiding at 
the meeting is of the opinion should by reason of special circumstances be transacted at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency. 
 

Nodyn:  Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod Hybrid a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion mynychu trwy Siambr y 
Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / o bell Trwy Timau Microsoft. 
Bydd y cyfarfod cael ei recordio i’w drosglwyddo drwy wefan y Cyngor.  Os oes gennych unrhyw 
gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643148 / 
643694 / 643513 / 643159 
 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghorwr: 
A R Berrow 
RJ Collins 
RM Granville 
S J Griffiths 
J Llewellyn-Hopkins 
J E Pratt 



IS BWYLLGOR HAWLIAU TRAMWY - DYDD LLUN, 22 AWST 2022 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD Y IS BWYLLGOR HAWLIAU TRAMWY A GYNHALIWYD YN 
REMOTELY - VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS DYDD LLUN, 22 AWST 2022, AM 10:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd  RM Granville – Cadeirydd  

 
C L C Davies  H Griffiths S J Griffiths 
M R John    

 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Jane Dessent Cyfreithiwr 
Andrew Mason Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy 
Matthew Palmer Rights of Way and Access Land Officer 
Michael Pitman Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Pwyllgorau 

 
1. CYMERADWYO COFNODION 

 
PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 17/03/2022 fel 
cofnod gwir a chywir. 

 
2. CYNNIG I DDARGYFEIRIO LLWYBR TROED 16 AC 17, YNYSAWDRE A CHYNNIG I 

DDIDDYMU LLWYBR TROED 16, YNYSAWDRE YN RHANNOL A CHYNNIG I 
DDARGYFEIRIO LLWYBR TROED 12, 16 AC 17 NEWCASTLE HIGHER 
 
Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn am awdurdodiad i 
wneud dau Orchymyn yn unol ag Adran 257 o Ddeddf Cynllunio Gwlad a Thref 1990, ar 
dir i'r gorllewin o Heol Maesteg, Ton-du, CF32 9DF. 
 
Dywedodd y bydd angen dargyfeirio rhannau o Lwybrau Troed 16 ac 17 Ynysawdre a 
Llwybrau Troed 12, 16 ac 17 Newcastle Higher yn ogystal â diddymu Llwybr Troed 16, 
Ynysawdre yn rhannol. Rhestrwyd y rhain yn 3.1 o'r adroddiad. 
 
Dywedodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy fod y cynllun yn Atodiad A i'r adroddiad yn 
dangos cwrtil caniatâd y caniatâd cynllunio. Dangoswyd y rhannau o lwybrau troed y 
bwriedir eu dargyfeirio gan linellau du solet sy'n rhedeg rhwng y pwyntiau canlynol ar y 
cynllun yn Atodiad B i'r adroddiad.  
 
Rhoddodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy fanylion am y gwahanol lwybrau y bwriedir eu 
dargyfeirio, eu diddymu’n rhannol a’u creu a darparwyd y rhain yn fanwl yn Atodiad B ac 
adran 4 o'r adroddiad. 
 
Tynnodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy sylw at wall yn yr adroddiad yn adran 4.12. Roedd 
yr adroddiad yn cyfeirio at y llwybr newydd arfaethedig rhwng pwynt P a G1 oddeutu 110 
metr o hyd, mewn gwirionedd roedd hyn oddeutu 37 metr. 
 
I gefnogi'r adroddiad, darparodd y Swyddog Hawliau Tramwy a Thir Mynediad 
ffotograffau i'r Aelodau a oedd yn dangos golygfeydd cyfredol yr holl bwyntiau 
perthnasol yn y llwybrau troed, yn ogystal â ffotograffau o'r awyr. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod a fyddai’r arwyneb y llwybr newydd yn gymysgedd o darmac ac 
arwyneb naturiol. Dywedodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy nad oedd unrhyw lwybrau 
troed newydd wedi’u gwneud o gyfuniad o bob deunydd. Ychwanegodd mai dim ond 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



IS BWYLLGOR HAWLIAU TRAMWY - DYDD LLUN, 22 AWST 2022 

 
Llwybr Troed 16 Newcastle Higher fydd ag arwyneb hollol naturiol a byddai gweddill y 
llwybrau yn darmac llawn.  
 
Gofynnodd Aelod a oedd cynlluniau i osod unrhyw oleuadau stryd ar y llwybrau troed 
newydd wedi'u dargyfeirio. Dywedodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy nad oedd unrhyw 
ddyletswydd statudol gan y Cyngor i wneud hyn, ac nad oedd unrhyw gynlluniau i wneud 
hynny ar gyfer y llwybrau hyn. Ychwanegodd fod bwriad i osod 3 golau stryd yn un rhan 
o lwybr troed 12 Newcastle Higher, o bwynt P i gyfeiriad y de-orllewin. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd mewn perthynas â'r danffordd a grybwyllir yn yr adroddiad, a 
oedd goleuadau stryd yn cael ei osod yma. Dywedodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy nad 
oedd unrhyw oleuadau wedi'i gynnig ar gyfer y llwybr hwn. 
 
Dywedodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy y byddai'r newid i hyd cyffredinol y rhwydwaith yn 
yr ardal o ganlyniad i'r cynigion a amlinellir yn yr adroddiad bellach yn 102 metr yn 
hirach nag y mae ar hyn o bryd ac nid 175 metr fel y nodir ym mharagraff 4.27 o'r 
adroddiad. 
 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

 Awdurdodi Prif Swyddog y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoliadol, Adnoddau 
Dynol a Pholisi Corfforaethol i wneud y Gorchymyn angenrheidiol i geisio 
dargyfeirio Llwybrau Troed 16 ac 17 Ynysawdre a Llwybrau Troed 12, 16 a 17 
Newcastle Higher ac i greu llwybr troed cyswllt ychwanegol fel y dangosir ar y 
cynllun yn Atodiad B i'r adroddiad, ac i gadarnhau'r Gorchymyn ar yr amod nad 
oes unrhyw wrthwynebiadau neu sylwadau yn cael eu gwneud o fewn y cyfnod 
rhagnodedig, neu fod unrhyw wrthwynebiadau neu sylwadau a wneir yn cael eu 
tynnu'n ôl.  

 

 Awdurdodi Prif Swyddog y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoliadol, Adnoddau 
Dynol a Pholisi Corfforaethol i wneud y Gorchymyn angenrheidiol i geisio 
diddymu llwybr troed 16 Ynysawdre yn rhannol fel y dangosir ar y cynllun yn 
Atodiad B i'r adroddiad, ac i gadarnhau'r Gorchymyn ar yr amod na wneir unrhyw 
wrthwynebiadau na sylwadau o fewn y cyfnod rhagnodedig, neu fod unrhyw 
wrthwynebiadau neu sylwadau a wneir yn cael eu tynnu'n ôl.  

 

 Bod Prif Swyddog y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoliadol, Adnoddau Dynol a 
Pholisi Corfforaethol yn cael ei awdurdodi i anfon y Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion at 
Lywodraeth Cymru i'w penderfynu, os na chaiff unrhyw wrthwynebiadau a 
dderbynnir eu tynnu'n ôl.  

 

 Bod y Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion yn eithrio unrhyw ran o'r dargyfeiriad sy'n 
defnyddio priffyrdd sy’n cael eu cynnal gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont 
ar Ogwr, gan fod hawliau cyhoeddus eisoes yn bodoli drostynt. 

3. CYNNIG I DDARGYFEIRIO LLWYBR TROED 19, LLANGRALLO ISAF A CHYNNIG I 
DDIDDYMU LLWYBR TROED 18, LLANGRALLO ISAF YN RHANNOL 
 
Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy adroddiad a oedd yn ceisio awdurdodiad i 
ddirymu’r penderfyniad gwreiddiol mewn perthynas â'r cynnig i ddargyfeirio Llwybr Troed 
19 Llangrallo Isaf a’r cynnig i ddiddymu Llwybr Troed 18 Llangrallo Isaf yn rhannol a 
wnaed gan yr Is-bwyllgor Hawliau Tramwy ar 5 Hydref 2021 ac i ofyn am awdurdodiad i 
wneud dau Orchymyn yn unol ag Adran 257 (Dargyfeirio) ac Adran 258 (Diddymu) o 
Ddeddf Cynllunio Gwlad a Thref 1990, ar dir i'r dwyrain o'r A48 (Crack Hill), Brocastell, 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, CF31 5AU. 
 

Page 4



IS BWYLLGOR HAWLIAU TRAMWY - DYDD LLUN, 22 AWST 2022 

 
Darparodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy gefndir i'r adroddiad fel y manylir yn adran 3 o'r 
adroddiad. O bwys arbennig oedd y ffaith bod y mater wedi cael ei adrodd o'r blaen i'r Is-
bwyllgor Hawliau Tramwy ar 5 Hydref 2021. Roedd yn rhaid ei ailystyried oherwydd bod 
newidiadau bach i ddwy ran o'r llwybr a gynigir ei ddargyfeirio wedi'u darganfod cyn i'r 
Gorchmynion a awdurdodwyd yn flaenorol gael eu gwneud.  Roedd y cynllun yn Atodiad 
A i'r adroddiad yn dangos cwrtil caniatâd y caniatâd cynllunio. Dangosir y rhan o Lwybr 
Troed 19 Llangrallo Isaf y bwriedir ei ddargyfeirio gan linellau du solet rhwng Pwyntiau 
A-B ar y cynllun yn Atodiad D i'r adroddiad.  
 
Eglurodd fod y rhan o Lwybr Troed 18 Llangrallo Isaf y bwriedir ei diddymu yn cael ei 
dangos gan linellau du solet rhwng Pwyntiau J-W ar y cynllun yn Atodiad D i'r adroddiad; 
ac, at ddibenion cyflawnrwydd, dangosir y ddwy gyswllt newydd sydd i'w creu gan 
linellau du toredig rhwng Pwyntiau A-M-N-O-P-Q a R-S-TU-V ar y cynllun yn Atodiad D 
i'r adroddiad. 
 
Eglurodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy fod llwybr troed 19, Llangrallo Isaf ar hyn o bryd yn 
cychwyn ym Mhwynt A (Cyfeirnod Grid SS 92857765), fel y dangosir ar y cynllun yn 
Atodiad D, ac yn mynd ymlaen i gyfeiriad cyffredinol y dwyrain /  gogledd-ddwyrain am 
oddeutu 615 metr hyd at ei derfyn ger Nant Brocastell (Ffin y Fwrdeistref Sirol) ym 
Mhwynt B (Cyfeirnod Grid SS 93407790). Nid yw lled diffiniol y llwybr wedi’i ddiffinio. 
Mae gan y llwybr troed arwyneb naturiol. 
 
Eglurodd fod llwybrau amgen arfaethedig Llwybr Troed 19, Llangrallo Isaf wedi'u 
disgrifio'n fanwl ym mharagraffau 4.2 a 4.3 o'r adroddiad. Amlinellwyd rhagor o 
wybodaeth am y gwahanol gynigion yn adran 4 o'r adroddiad. 
 
Tynnodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy sylw at wall yn yr adroddiad ym mharagraff 4.2. 
Mae'r paragraff yn cyfeirio at bwynt X o atodiad D, fodd bynnag, dylai fod yn bwynt Z.  
 
Dywedodd y Rheolwr Hawliau Tramwy, yn unol â phroses ymgynghori safonol yr Adran 
Hawliau Tramwy ar gyfer Gorchmynion Llwybrau Cyhoeddus, ymgynghorwyd â’r aelod 
lleol o Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol, Cyngor Cymuned Llangrallo Isaf, Cymdeithas Ceffylau 
Prydain, Cymdeithas y Crwydrwyr Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, grwpiau defnyddwyr eraill a 
sefydliadau â diddordeb, Heddlu De Cymru a chyfleustodau cyhoeddus ar y cynnig ym 
mis Medi 2018. Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw wrthwynebiadau gan: 
 
Gymdeithas y Crwydrwyr Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 
Heddlu De Cymru 
Wales & West Utilities 
Cyngor Cymuned Llangrallo Isaf 
 
Derbyniwyd gwrthwynebiadau gan Dŵr Cymru (DCWW) gan fod ganddynt gyfarpar yn yr 
ardal yr oedd y cynnig yn effeithio arni. Cynhaliwyd trafodaethau rhwng yr asiant a 
DCWW ac anfonwyd e-bost terfynol yn nodi y byddai DCWW yn tynnu eu 
gwrthwynebiad yn ôl o ganlyniad i'r trafodaethau hynny.  
 
Yn dilyn cyflwyno rhagor o wybodaeth am y cynigion newydd, a gyflwynwyd gan yr 
ymgeisydd o ganlyniad i newidiadau arfaethedig yn y caniatâd cynllunio, cynhaliwyd 
ymgynghoriad pellach ym mis Gorffennaf 2020. Darparwyd y manylion hyn a'r 
gwrthwynebiadau a dderbyniwyd yn adran 4 o'r adroddiad. 
 
Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiynau gan yr Aelodau. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:  
 

Page 5



IS BWYLLGOR HAWLIAU TRAMWY - DYDD LLUN, 22 AWST 2022 

 

 Rhoi awdurdod i ddirymu'r penderfyniad gwreiddiol mewn perthynas â’r cynnig i 
ddargyfeirio Llwybr Troed 19 Llangrallo Isaf a diddymu Llwybr Troed 18 
Llangrallo Isaf yn rhannol fel y dangosir ar y cynllun yn Atodiad B i'r adroddiad, a 
wnaed gan yr Is-bwyllgor Hawliau Tramwy ar 5 Hydref 2021.  

 
 Awdurdodi Prif Swyddog y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a 

Rheoliadol i wneud y Gorchmynion angenrheidiol i geisio dargyfeirio Llwybr 
Troed 19 Llangrallo Isaf ac i ddiddymu Llwybr Troed 18 Llangrallo Isaf yn rhannol 
fel y dangosir ar y cynllun yn Atodiad D i'r adroddiad, yn amodol ar y diwygiad i 
adlewyrchu pwynt Z yn hytrach na phwynt X fel y nodir yn 4.2 o'r adroddiad, ac i 
gadarnhau'r Gorchmynion ar yr amod nad oes unrhyw wrthwynebiadau neu 
sylwadau yn cael eu gwneud o fewn y cyfnod rhagnodedig, neu fod unrhyw 
wrthwynebiadau neu sylwadau a wneir yn cael eu tynnu'n ôl.  

 

 Bod Prif Swyddog y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Rheoliadol yn 
cael ei awdurdodi i anfon y Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion at Lywodraeth Cymru i'w 
penderfynu, os na chaiff unrhyw wrthwynebiadau a dderbynnir eu tynnu'n ôl.  

 

 Bod y Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion yn eithrio unrhyw ran o'r dargyfeiriad sy'n 
defnyddio priffyrdd sy’n cael eu cynnal gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont 
ar Ogwr, gan fod hawliau cyhoeddus eisoes yn bodoli drostynt. 
 

  
4. EITEMAU BRYS 

 
Dim 
  
 

Page 6



 

 
Meeting of:  

 
RIGHTS OF WAY SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
11 APRIL 2025 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
PROPOSED DIVERSION OF  

FOOTPATH 17 PORTHCAWL 
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES 

Responsible 
Officer:  

                
ANDREW MASON  

RIGHTS OF WAY MANAGER   
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

It is considered that there is no effect upon policy framework 
and procedure rules. 
 

 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

The implementation of planning consent P/23/119/FUL, full 
planning application for the development of a new detached 
two storey dwelling next to 15 The Burrows, Porthcawl, CF36 
5AJ will require a section of Footpath 17, Porthcawl, to be 
diverted.  An application to divert that part of the footpath 
affected by the application has been submitted and 
consultations undertaken with various individuals and 
statutory bodies in accordance with the Council’s standard 
consultation process for Public Path Orders. Consideration 
of any objections is contained within the body of the report. 
Further to these considerations the report seeks 
authorisation for the making of an Order pursuant to Section 
257 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 This report requests authorisation for the making of an Order pursuant to Section 

257 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 on land adjoining 15 The Burrows, 

Porthcawl, CF36 5AJ. 

 
2. Background  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

2.1 The implementation of planning consent P/23/119/FUL, full planning application for 

the development of a new detached two storey dwelling house with three bedrooms 

next to 15 The Burrows, Porthcawl, CF36 5AJ, will require a section of Footpath 17, 

Porthcawl, to be diverted.  The plan in Appendix A to the report shows the consent 

curtilage of the planning consent.  The section of the footpath which is proposed to 

be diverted is shown between Points A-B-C on the plan in Appendix B to the report. 

 
 

3. Current situation/ proposal  
 
3.1 Currently the route as described in the Definitive Statement commences at Point A 

(Grid Ref. SS 84097743), as shown on the plan in Appendix B, and proceeds in a 

general easterly direction for approximately 52 metres to Point B (Grid Ref. SS 

84147743) the route then continues in a north north-easterly direction for 

approximately 8 metres to Point C (Grid Ref. SS 84147743). The approximate length 

of the footpath to be diverted is 60 metres but the width is currently undefined in the 

Definitive Statement.  The footpath has a natural surface. 

 

3.2 The proposed alternative route of Footpath 17, Porthcawl, runs from Point D (Grid 

Ref. SS 84097744) on the plan (Appendix B), and proceeds in a general easterly 

direction for approximately 10 metres to Point E (Grid Ref. SS 84107744) before 

continuing in an east south-easterly direction for approximately 8 metres to Point F 

(Grid Ref. SS 84107743), the route then continues in a general easterly direction for 

approximately 34 metres to Point G (Grid Ref. SS 84147743) before turning and 

running in a north-easterly direction for approximately 4 metres to Point C (Grid Ref. 

SS 84147743).  The approximate length of the new route is 56 metres.  The new 

footpath will have a width of 1.5 metres and a tarmacadam surface with path edging 

as per the rest of Footpath 17, Porthcawl, through the housing estate. 

 

3.3 As will be noted from the diversion order plan, the new footpath will start on the 

eastern edge of the footway on The Burrows (Point D) approximately 11 metres north 

of the point where the existing footpath leaves the same residential street (Point A on 

the plan).  This slight alteration to the point where the route commences on The 

Burrows is perfectly acceptable within the scope of the legislation.  Furthermore, the 

reason why the footpath diversion is not shown as running along the footway of The 

Burrows i.e. between Points A and D is because the footway is already shown as part 

of the maintainable highway and the legislation does not allow for public rights of way 

to be created over existing highways.  Taking into account the additional section of 

footway that users of the footpath will now have to use, the total length of the 

alternative route is 66 metres. 

 

3.4 The diversion of this section of Footpath 17, Porthcawl, was originally discussed in 

November 2016 when the agent for the applicant sought advice from the Rights of 

Way Section for the possible diversion of the footpath for a previous planning 

application.  As a result of those discussions the agent submitted a proposal for the 

Page 8



 

diversion of the footpath.  The proposed alternative route was agreed in principal by 

the Rights of Way Section at that time.   

 

3.5 Unfortunately, the previous footpath diversion order process could not be completed 

due to the time limit of planning consent P/17/595/FUL elapsing.  As such, a new 

application to divert that section of Footpath 17, Porthcawl, was submitted with a 

similar specification as previously submitted in 2017. 

 

3.6 A request to divert this section of Footpath 17, Porthcawl, was submitted on the 18th 

February 2023 in anticipation of the granting of planning consent. Planning consent 

was granted on the 21st April 2023 and the formal application to divert the footpath 

was received on the 6th January 2025. 

 

3.7 In accordance with the Council’s standard consultation process for Public Path 

Orders the local County Borough Council members, Porthcawl Town Council, the 

British Horse Society, Bridgend Ramblers Association, other user groups and 

interested bodies, South Wales Police and public utilities, were all consulted in March 

2023 following the submission of the proposal in anticipation of the most recent 

planning application being granted consent. During the consultation process 

numerous representations were received in relation to the proposed diversion.  These 

are outlined below. 

a, Bridgend Ramblers – No objection 
 
b. South Wales Police Designing out Crime Officer – No comment. 

 
c. The British Horse Society (BHS) – Objected to the proposal on the following 

grounds: 

1. That the specification for the proposed new route is inadequate. Even if only as a 

footpath, a recorded width of 1.5m is insufficient. The plans accompanying the 

planning application relating to the development indicate the construction of a 1.5m 

wide tarmac path but set within a wider corridor. There is nothing to prevent the 

owner of the land from fencing in the route in the future thus creating a narrow, 

enclosed, and uninviting route.  The recorded width of the route should be a level 

width of a minimum of 3m in an urban / suburban setting such as this.  

2. I would like to refer to the rights of way improvement plan, Guidance for Local 

authorities 2016. 

3. Improvement plans are intended to be the prime means by which local highway 

authorities will identify the changes to be made in respect of the management and 

improvement of their local rights of way network to make better provision for 

walkers, cyclists, equestrians and for those who face barriers in accessing the 

countryside.  Public rights of way have an important role to play in improving and 

sustaining health and well-being and in meeting the objectives outlined in the Well-

being of Future Generations Act (2015). Research of the benefits of horse riding is 

available along with their contributions to local economy. Equestrians are a 

Page 9



 

minority group and vulnerable road users therefore look to every available 

opportunity of safe off-road access whether to visit a local amenity, connect with 

friends or to access the countryside for recreation.  Shared and with the least 

restrictive access for all user groups helps to meet the targets of a healthier nation 

and should be afforded to all. A good example of inclusive thinking - Paths for 

everyone (Sustrans) has signed a MOU with the BHS. Promoting shared access. 

Promoting opportunities of choice.  

4. FP 17 to a Bridleway would encompass all users and help to extend future non-

motorised networks. Promoting least restrictive access for all, benefiting in health 

and well-being for all.  

5. With reference to the BHS’ long-outstanding application for bridleway status for the 

route, the consultation letter states “if…the application to divert the footpath is 

successful this will not have any bearing on the determination of the Modification 

Order.” Whilst this may be technically correct, it is disingenuous and misleading as 

the proposal will have a clear and direct impact on the ability to accommodate the 

bridleway in this location.  It is therefore in the public interest to ensure that a 

suitable width corridor is provided for the proposed new route such that it could 

accommodate the bridleway should that be necessary. It is therefore also in 

BCBC’s interest to do this as it will fall to the Council to set out the bridleway should 

the DMMO be confirmed.  

6. Consequently, the BHS considers that the Definitive Map Modification Order to 

upgrade that section of Footpath 17 to a bridleway should be determined prior to 

any decisions on the proposed diversion of the footpath.   

3.8 In regard to the British Horse Society’s Objections, a summary of the Council’s 

response is provided below in paragraphs 3.9 – 3.14.  

 

3.9 The definitive width of Footpath 17 Porthcawl is undefined and at the date of the 

response to the British Horse Society a K-barrier was still present on this section of 

footpath. Prior to 2017 there was a post and rail fence enclosing the area in question 

and it was heavily vegetated.  

 

3.10 With regards to the proposed width of the new footpath being 1.5 metres, when an 

existing footpath of undefined width is diverted the Authority only requires a minimum 

width of 1.4 metres where it is to be bounded only on one side i.e. by a fence. If the 

route is to be bounded on both sides then the Council would require a minimum width 

of 1.8 metres. The current application shows the proposed new route being bounded 

on one side, therefore, the applicant has provided above the minimum width required 

for such an application.  Moreover, the northern boundary of the proposed diverted 

route is a natural bank and does not have any beneficial future use for the 

applicant.  Therefore, they are extremely unlikely to erect any additional fence to the 

north of the new route which would confine it to the 1.5 metres.  

 

Page 10



 

3.11 The suggestion that the width of a footpath within an urban/suburban setting should 

be 3 metres was noted but the BHS were advised there is no legal requirement for 

this.  

 

3.12 Turning now to the consideration of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan (RoWIP) 

the Council has advised that Improvement Plans have been developed to help local 

highway authorities identify changes to be made in respect of the management and 

improvement of their local rights of way network. This doesn’t prevent landowners, 

individuals or companies from applying for Public Path Orders under any relevant 

legislation e.g. the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. The Council does need to 

take the RoWIP into account when dealing with such applications and this has been 

considered in this instance.   

 

3.13 In regard to the Definitive Map Modification Order applications the BHS have been 

advised that the route in question only has a legal status of a footpath and the various 

applications in the area to upgrade this and other footpaths to bridleway have not 

been processed to conclusion. Therefore, the Council  are only able to consider the 

diversion of the route as a footpath. The Authority are aware that changing Footpath 

17 to a bridleway would allow for a greater number of users to access the rights of 

way network at this location.  However, that will only be the case if the DMMO is 

confirmed.  

 

3.14 The Council has considered the DMMO applications that affect the existing public 

right of way at this site and has agreed to process the application to divert the footpath 

whilst the DMMO applications are being processed to a conclusion. Should any of 

the Orders that have been made in relation to the DMMO applications that affect 

Footpath 17 Porthcawl be confirmed the Council will deal with this at the appropriate 

time. The Council has received a considerable number of representations and 

objections in relation to the outstanding DMMO’s. Every effort is being made to 

complete the DMMO process before the diversion application is determined but this 

may not be possible. 

3.15 Following receipt of the Council’s response the British Horse Society advised that 

they wished to maintain their objections to the proposal. 

 

 

 

GROUP MANAGER – HIGHWAYS AND GREEN SPACES.   

3.16 In order to facilitate the construction of a new detached two storey dwelling house 

with three bedrooms as per planning consent P/23/119/FUL at land adjoining 15 The 

Burrows, Porthcawl, CF36 5AJ a section of Footpath 17, Porthcawl,, will need to be 

diverted.                                                                           

 

Page 11



 

3.17 The Welsh Governments Guidance for Local Authorities on Public Rights of Way – 

August 2016 states: 

‘Before making an Order the Council must be satisfied that it is necessary to do so in 

order to enable development to be carried out in accordance with planning permission 

that has been granted.’   

As Members are aware, it should not be assumed that an Order should be made 

simply because planning permission has been granted. 

‘In determining whether an Order is ‘necessary’ the Council must examine the 

activities authorised by the planning permission to see whether they are, or are not, 

compatible with the retention of highway rights.  An activity which would involve 

obstruction of a highway (for example, the erection of a structure across the line of a 

highway or introducing a use such as outdoor storage or long-term parking) would be 

incompatible with the highway and so make out a case of necessity.’ 

‘Even where a case of necessity is made out, an authority still has discretion whether 

to make an Order or not.  However, having concluded that the planning permission 

should be granted, there must be good reasons for deciding that an Order, which 

would permit implementation of that permission, should not be made.’ 

‘In coming to a judgment as to whether to make an Order, the following should be 

taken into account: 

 The interests of the general public. 

 The potential effects of the Order on some members of the public, such as 

occupiers of property adjoining the highway. 

 Any potential financial loss to members of the public.’ 

 

3.18 In regard to the three considerations outlined above Members are advised as follows: 

 The interests of the public can be said to be satisfied because although the 

proposed diversion is slightly longer than the existing route this is very minor 

when the total length of Footpath 17, Porthcawl, is considered.  In addition the 

current footpath has a natural surface whereas the proposed surface will be 

tarmac and the current width is undefined whereas the new width will have a 

defined width of 1.5 metres.  The developer will be responsible for the works 

to provide the diversion and the provision of the new route. 

 Although the footpath is being moved from one side of an area of open ground 

to the other the same properties will still be affected by the route albeit to a 

greater or lesser extent.  Therefore there does not appear to be any additional 

effects of the Order on any adjoining properties. 

 It may be considered that the Order could have a detrimental effect on 

equestrian users – with the path being diverted before the DMMO is 

Page 12



 

determined.  However, the route is currently only a public footpath and 

therefore the matter must be processed as such.  If the DMMO is confirmed 

then the Council will have to deal with any new issues that arise at that time. 

 The Council is unaware of any potential financial loss to members of the public. 

 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 

4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 

preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 

impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 

strategies, services and functions. An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 

screening has identified that there would be no negative impact on those with one or 

more of the protected characteristics, on socio-economic disadvantage or the use of 

the Welsh Language. It is therefore not necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy 

or proposal.  

 

5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 

5.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment Template has 

been completed and a summary of the implications from the assessment relating to 

the five ways of working is below:  

 Long-term: In the short-term the diversion of Footpath 17, Porthcawl, enables the 

landowner to complete a development for which planning permission has been 

granted whilst long-term this enables the Rights of Way network to be protected from 

obstruction for the enjoyment of the public.  It also enables the network to be 

accurately recorded and maintained 

 Prevention: Any works required to implement the proposed diversion will be paid 

for by the developer.  By upgrading the surface of the route this will reduce 

maintenance. 

 Integration: With agreed construction methods, as well as time frames, the 

diversion of footpaths to enable development to be implemented allows for an 

attractive and diverse economy that will encourage more people to use the route 

during their daily routine.. 

 Collaboration: The developer must provide a suitable alternative that is no less 

commodious to users of the existing footpath.  The diverted route is open to objection 

and cannot be implemented until all objections are withdrawn or, where objections do 

remain the Order is confirmed by the Planning Inspectorate. 

Page 13



 

 Involvement: Consultations are carried out with statutory consultees as well as 

local members and Town or Community councils and their views are considered 

before a decision is made to make the order.  

5.2 The rights of way provision will contribute to the following elements of the Bridgend 

County Borough Council Delivering Together Corporate Plan 2023-28:  

 Wellbeing objective 3: ‘A county borough with thriving valleys communities. 

Improving community facilities and making them more accessible.’ The RoW network 

extends and links communities as such preserves the connectivity and accessibility 

of the valley communities to the county borough.  

 Wellbeing objective 7: ‘A county borough where we support people to live healthy 

and happy lives, improving active travel routes and facilities so people can walk and 

cycle.’. The RoW network provides valuable opportunities for residents to access 

local routes as well as enjoy access to the countryside which helps support wellbeing. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  

6.1 Bridgend County Borough Council’s 2030 Net Zero Carbon Strategy states that “To 
achieve our carbon neutral goal, we need to improve air quality, protect, and enhance 
our thriving green spaces, support sustainable travel, and continue to create energy 
efficient, good quality places to live and work to make the county borough a healthier 
and happier place to live.” The rights of way network promotes and supports 
sustainable travel and benefits the wellbeing of its residents, making the county 
borough a healthier and happier place to live 
 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 

7.1 There are no Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications arising from this 

report. 

8.  Financial Implications  

8.1 Any financial implications arising from the above procedures are expected to be 
minimal as the developer will be meeting the cost of the diversion order process and 
the implementation of any works required by the Council. 

 

9. Recommendations 

9.1 That authorisation be given for the Chief Officer Legal and Regulatory Services, HR 

and Corporate Policy to make the necessary Order to seek to realign Footpath 17, 

Porthcawl, to the route shown on Appendix B to the report, and to confirm the Order 

provided no objections or representations are made within the prescribed period, or 

if any so made are withdrawn.  

Page 14



 

9.2 That the Chief Officer Legal and Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate Policy be 

authorised to forward the Order to the Welsh Government for determination, if any 

objections received are not withdrawn.  

9.3 That the Order(s) excludes any section of the diversion, which utilises highways which

 are maintainable by Bridgend County Borough Council, as public rights already exist 

over them. 

 
 
Background documents 
 
File A763/1/FP 17 Porthcawl (14th August 2017 – present) 
 
DIRECTIONS TO SITE.  
 
The Rights of Way Sub Committee of 29 January 2010 agreed that future Rights of Way 
Sub Committee reports shall provide directions to, and the postcode of sites. This will ensure 
that the sites are easily located for the purpose of the site meeting prior to the Rights of Way 
Sub Committee at the Civic Offices. In compliance with this, the directions to the site and its 
postcode are as follows.  
 
Members are requested to meet at (Point A shown on the attached map (Appendix B)). The 
meeting point (as if coming from the Civic Offices) is accessed by proceeding north along 
Angel Street, then going straight ahead at the lights onto Park Street (A473).  Proceed for 
approximately 2.1 miles to a roundabout, take the 2nd exit carrying along the A473, before 
taking the 2nd exit at the next roundabout to join the A48 (Port Talbot/Porthcawl).  Continue 
along the A48 to another roundabout, take the 1st exit (Porthcawl/A4106) onto Bridgend 
Road.  Continue along Bridgend Road until you reach the next roundabout (2.1 miles), take 
the 1st exit (Newton), before taking your 1st left onto Manor Grove, then your 2nd right onto 
Danygraig Avenue, then the 3rd right onto Birch Walk, you will then need to take your 1st left 
onto Rowan Drive, then 2nd right onto Lime Tree Way before finally taking the 1st left onto 
The Burrows.  The location of the site meeting is on your left some 85 metres from the 
junction with Lime Tree Way.  There is limited on road parking near to the start point on The 
Burrows, The Firs or Cypress Gardens. 
  
The wearing of stout footwear is recommended. 
 
The postcode for The Burrows is CF36 5AJ.  This postcode is south of the meeting point 
when using Google maps. 
 
It is advised that you park nearby and walk to the starting point as there is limited on street 
parking. 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

 No Window 

Scale 1:500

Civic Offices
Angel Street

Bridgend   CF31 4WB
Telephone (01656) 643643

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey
material with the permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery 
Office. © Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright
and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 
Licence Number: 100023405, 2011.

Aerial Imagery: Cities Revealed aerial photography
copyright The Geo Information Group 2010

Compiled from CAMS by M Palmer


COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

Corporate Director
Communities

BRIDGEND COUNTY
BOROUGH COUNCIL

4

10

1

11

21
15

118

1

2

CYPRESS

THE FIRS

Path
BU

R
R

O
W

S

LARCH CLOSE

T
H

E

Planning Application P/17/595/FUL

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



0 0.0005

Scale 1:500

CYPRES

B
U

R
R

O
W

S

LARCH CLOSE

T
H

E

1

6

11

15

4

8 11
1

10

< Map-1 >
PROPOSED DIVERSION OF 
FOOTPATH 17 PORTHCAWL

Civic Offices
Angel Street

Bridgend   CF31 4WB
Telephone (01656) 643643

COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

Corporate Director
Communities

BRIDGEND COUNTY
BOROUGH COUNCIL

©Crown Copyright and database right 2024. 
Ordnance Survey AC0000851951. Use of this 
data is subject to terms and conditions.

©Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddata'r Goron 
2024. Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans 
AC0000851951. Mae defnydd o’r data hwn yn 
ddarostyngedig i delerau ac amodau.

Date: 31/12/2024

KEY

Proposed section of Footpath 17 Porthcawl 
to be diverted (A-B-C)
Proposed alternative route (D-E-F-G-C)
Continuation of Footpath 17 Porthcawl

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	ourref1
	yourref1

	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Bwriad i Ddargyfeirio Llwybr Troed 17 Porthcawl
	Appendix A
	App B POR 17 Diversion Order Plan 2024


